SAN DIEGQ COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY
MINUTES OF THE PUBLiC HEARING RE ORDINANCE 91-1
March 14, 1991

A public hearing regarding Ordinance 91~1 was held on
Thursday, March 14, 1991 in the Board room of Authority
Headquarters, 3211 Fifth Avenue, San Diego, California.

Chairman Madigan called the meeting to order at 1:15 p.m.
Secretary Leach called the roll. Directors answering present
were‘Anderson, Brannon, Carlson, Chenelle, Collins, Cooper,
Drake, Eggert, Frahm, Friedland, Golding, Hollingsworth, Johnson,
Krauel, Larson, Leach, Madigan, Mason, Omsted, Parker, Parrish,
Pryde, Snavely, Stevens, Stickney, Taylor, F. Thompson, K.
Thompson, Tinker, Turner, Watton and Wright. Absent were
Directors Griffen and Starkey. Also present were Messrs. Snow,
Engstrand, Bakall,; Rhodes, Ms. Jackson, Buck, Jacoby and others.

The Secretary declared a quorum present.

Chairman Madigan stated that the purpose of the hearing was
to consider a water shortage emergency in San Diego County and
what the Authority may do in response to that shortage. He said
that staff would make a presentation followed by public testimony
with a 2 minute limit. Chairman Madigan explained that after
public testimony was heard, the hearing would be closed. The
‘Board would then convene for open discussion and a vote would be
taken on the issue of a water shortage emergency ordinance. He

stated that a regular Board meeting would be held after the

public hearing and then adjourned to reconvene before the next

13

W




138

regularly scheduled Board meeting In April, in case circumstances

changed regarding the drought.

General Manager Snow presented an overview of the drought.
He stated that many comments were‘received from the member
agencies, different trades and the public which caused the
ordinance to be revised. He said that the dire water situation
in the state required staff to recommend a list of prohibited
uses and flow restriction to its member agencies. Mr. Snow said
that 4 types of water supply would impact what would happen
during the summer. 1) The March precipitation patterns, 2) State
water bank, 3) Metropolitan Water District (MWD) bank and 4)
Local additional supplies.

Director of Planning Buck gave an update on the water

situation. He stated that the Authority received full deliveries

in January of 1989 even though it was the third year of drought.
In December 19920 the Authority was notified of a 7.8% cut back
based on the forecasts from the State Department of Water
Resources and MWD. He said that in 3 short months the Authority
was notified that it would be reduced from a 7.8% to a 50%
cutback. Mr. Buck showed water storage slides including one of
the State Water Project (SWP) watershed.

Director Watton agked if there had been an evaluation on the
water content of the snow. Mr. Buck replied that the snow early
in the month was very wet with a lot of moisture but the recent
storms were on the subpolar track‘Which were drier and colder

with very little moisture.




199

Director Stickney stated that the moisture content was up
from 10% to 30%, but 60% would be ideal.

Mr. Buck stated that representatives from the State
Department of Water Resources said that all additional
precipitation they receive would be held in Oroville and San Luis
Reservoirs as carryover storage. He said they would do a snow
survey on April 1 and around April 10 the Authority would be
notified if additional water would be available from the SWP.

Mr. Snow showed supply and demand slides on the SWP. He
said that the Authority had received all the water they were
going to receive unless there was a substantial change in the
watershed on the SWP. He said that 15,000,0000 people in
Southern California were short 46% of the supply that they need
to meet the demand.

Assistant General Manager Rhodes showed slides regarding San
Diego County's conservation efforts for February. A 15%
reduction was supposed to occur, but the Authority was over its
allotment by 21%. He said that the overage in February should be
able to be made up in March and April. He said that the rainfall
in early March allowed the reduction of 39% through March 12. He
emphasized that a 50% reduction would be required during the hot
and dry months.

Director Leach reinforced that the amount of water available

to the Authority was to last the remaining 10 months of the year.

Mr. Snow stated that during the rain in the first weeks in




~

90

March the outside watering should have been shut off and the
Authority was still not able to reach a 50% cutback.

Mr. Snow stated that staff worked with member agencies and
businesses to find a plan that would be equitable, provide
uniformity in the.County and provide quick reductions. He said
that the prohibited uses would provide uniformity in the County
and the flow restriction program would allow the Authority to
limit flows to an agency that continually went over its
allotment. Three versions of the original ordinance were
developed. Version I banned irrigating turf. The irrigation of
other outdoor uses was prohibited except with a hose or micro-
irrigation system. One modification made from the original draft
was allowing irrigation of ground cover on slopes with
interspersed trees and shrubs once ever 14 days. Mr. Snow said
that version II added turf watering by hand held hose every 14
days.

Director Anderson stated that even though turf irrigation
every 14 days was allowed in version II, the 50% reduction would
still be required.

Mr. Snow emphasized that the prohibited uses would not get a
50% reduction. He said that version III was an approach with no
prohibitive uses and a more aggressive flow restriction program.
He stated that version III was only added so that the Board would
have a full range of opportunities to take action while declaring’

an emergency under section 350 of the Water Code. Mr. Snow felt




. &N

that version III would not assure the kind of savings that were
necessary.

Director Frahm asked how the flow restrictions in version
ITI changed from the original ordinance. Mr. Snow stated that
originally the General Manager would have worked with the member
agencies and notified them of potential overages, and the cut
would not be done until June 1. He said that in version III the
General Manager could start restricting flows to member agencies
on April 1.

Director Friedland stated that allowing golf courses to use
water every 14 days would endanger domestic, health, and fire
protection during those days of watering.

Director Pryde wanted to know if there was some kind of
control on how much water would be used on the golf courses once
every 14 days. Mr. Snow said that it would be impossible for a
golf course to apply the same amount of water in one day that
they did in 14 days. He said that the golf course industry
estimated that version II would result in 85-90% reduction in
water use.

Director Stickney asked what type of irrigation would be
.allowed on golf courses. Mr. Buck stated that under version I
trees and shrubs could be watered with a hand held hose or drip

system. He said that version II would allow use of their regular

irrigation system once every 14 days.




3

N

Director Collins said that the original ordinance would not

allow a 50% reduction and she asked what amount of reduction

éould be expected with the other versions.

Water Conservation Director Jacoby showed slides of
estimated savings. He said that a family of 3 living in San
Diego County in a pre 1981 home without water saving fixtures was
used for the comparison. That family used approximately 372
gallons per day and had to be reduced to 186 gallons per day. He
showed several areas where reductions in water use could be done.

Mr. Snow said that version 1 would save 30% and version II
would save 20-24%. He said that the other savings would still
have to come from inside the home.

Mr. Snow reemphasized the fact that the Authority was 50%

short of water. He said that San Diego County wanted uniform

guidelines. The prohibited uses would get quick and efficient
savings, but would not get the total reduction required. Mr.
Snow said that every member agency would have to develop their
own incentives such as penalty pricing. He said that he hoped
the landscaping industry would investigate the opportunities
created by the reductions. People want to preserve their
landscaping with the limited water available to them and they
would need assistance from the professionals in the community.
Director Watton said that households with large yards would
have to cut back more than 50%. Mr. Snow said that the
prohibited uses would provide more than 50% cut back to golf

courses and people with large yards.




Director Brannon asked if grass would stay alive if watered
only every 14 days. Mr. Buck said that bermuda grass would live
and some other types may survive until mid-summer. He said the
golf courses would only be keeping a playable surface and
limiting their economic damage.

Director Leach asked if the Authority was prepared to give
its member agencies ideas on how to achieve the additional 20-25%
reductions needed. Mr. Snow said that workshops on penalty
pricing structures were held with the member agencies.

Director Mason said that a list of water saving
recommendations be made available to hi-rise office buildings and
multi-family dwellings to help them achieve the savings required.

Chairman Madigan opened the public hearing at 1:58 p.m.

Ms. Patricia Tennyson, 402 W. Broadway, Suite 1000, San
Diego, CA 92101 representing the Greater San Diego Chamber of
Commerce, addressed the Board. Ms. Tennyson referred to a letter
signed by Mel Katz, Chairman of the Chamber of Commerce, which
was distributed to the Board. She said that businesses needed to
know the rules so that they could abide by them. She also asked
the Board to consider the economic impacts of the ordinance on
construction, landscaping, agriculture and development. She said
that those industries contributed to the economy which would out
weigh totally reducing their water use. She stressed fairness to
all concerned.

Mr. Frank Panarisi, 6336 Greenwich Drive, Suite F, San

Diego, CA 92112 representing the Construction Industry

&3




<%

Federation (CIF), addressed the Board. Mr. Panarisi said that

the CIF were working with the Authority. He said that a uniform

set of prohibitions would be the best approach and supported
version I. He reviewed the retrofit program and suggested it be
expanded to include retrofitting schools and parks. He also
suggested ghanging the language on page 3, new services, to read
"no new service in the form of commitment to provide potable
water service shall be pro#ided by the issuance of letters of
water availability, new temporary meters or permanent meters
except as to property for which a building permit has been issued
prior to the effective date of this ordinance or except as to
property that has a binding contractual right to water
availability and service unless one or more of the following

circumstances occur." He said that it clarified liability

potential where agreements and contracts already existed.

Mr. Don Kidd, 3935 Normal Street, San Diego, CA 92103
representing the Operating Engineers Union Local 12, addressed
the Board. Mr. Kidd said that over 25% of his union was
unemployed due to the economic slump and the savings and loan
crisis. He said that 50% of the union would be unemployed if the
ordinance was adopted. Mr. Kidd felt that all industries should
be treated equally. He suggested cleaning out reservoirs and
dams and building new ones to catch the rainfall.

Mr. Steve Price, 211 Paden Drive, Spring Valley, CA 91977
representing CALTRANS Department qf Transportation, addressed the

Board. Mr. Price said that CALTRANS planned to let $75,000,000




)
3
W

worth of contracts in 1991. He said that those contracts were
jeopardized because of firm commitment for water supply. The
construction contracts could continue with reclaimed water as the
landscaping along the highways has done.

Mr. Bob Hunsaker, 14601 Cool Valley Ranch Road, Valley
Center, CA 92082, addressed the Board. Mr. Hunsaker
congratulated staff for their work on the original ordinance. He
said that he would like to see the conservation offset definition
expanded and some specifics provided to the member agencies. He
felt that the retrofit program should be a high priority.

Ms. Donna Kutter, 13614 Starridge, Poway, CA 92064,
addressed the Board. Ms. Kutter asked whether a property owner
who was receiving water on land would be restricted from
receiving a building permit. She felt that the wording under
"new services" should be clarified to include that type of
situation.

Director Leach said that the Water Authority did not have
the Authority to withhold the issuance of a building permit in
thé city of Poway. He said that the individual agencies would be
responsible for those issues.

Mr. Snow said that the offset could be obtained by having
Ms. Kutter remove some trees to build the house.

Mr. Niles Nordquist, 9666 Businesspark Avenue, #210, San
Diego, CA 92131 representing the American Society of Landscape

Architects (ASLA), addressed the Board. Mr. Nordquist

complimented the staff for their attention to ASIA's requests.




. =RNG

He referred to a letter from Mr. Glen Schmidt, President of ASIa,

supporting version I. He said that ASIA was in favor of water

management as the ultimate way of dealing with water shortages in
San Diego County.

Director Omsted asked Mr. Nordquist whether grass would live
with water every 14 days. Mr. Nordquist said that most of the
cool season grasses would die in the summer.

Mr. John Binkele of El1 Cajon, representing the California
Landscape Contractors_Association (CLCA), addressed the Board.
Mr. Binkele stated that CLCA favored comprehensive, not
selective, water conservation measures. He thanked staff for
their impfovements on Ordinance 91-1, but said that CLCA felt the
economic impact that would be generated from adopting any version

of the ordinance would greatly impact their segment of the

econony. He was concerned about the enforcement of 91-1 and
about his trade being singled out as non-essential water users.
He said that CLCA endorsed mandatory measures, but felt that the
water user should have a choice as to how to use their share.

Mr. Randy Newhard, 5318 Via Caiancho, San Diego, CA 92111,
representing the San Diego Chapter of the California Landscape
Contractors Association, addressed the Board. Mr. Newhard showed
slides which indicated that a 47% savings could be derived from
inside water reduction. He said that landscapes were usually
over watered by 30 to 40%. He asked that the Authority tell each
person how much water they would receive and allow them to manage

the method of conservation.

10




. &7

Ms. Cynthia Drake, 7966 "C" Arjons Drive, San Diego, CA
92126, representing the San Diego Association of Professional
Horticulturists and the Professional Tree Care Association,
addressed the Board. Ms. Drake emphasized the need to keep the
large old trees alive. She said that people would not be able to
properly care for their trees by watering every two weeks and
insect and disease problems would occur. She mentioned losing
the shade, bird habitat and animal homes if the trees were lost.
Ms. Drake felt that brown lawns and trees would impact the sale
of homes. She offered help to property owners in learning to
water their trees properly and how to irrigate the landscape
beds.

Mr. Gary Kah, 1114 Chesterton, Redwood City, CA 94061,
addressed the Board. Mr. Kah mentioned the outdoor water budgets
used for the past 10 years in Arizona. He said they use per
capita per day.targets for indoor water management. The cost of
landscape renovation per acre amounted to $7,500. He recommended
voting for version III to allow the Board to become better
advised. He felt that the landscape manager should decide where
to apply the water. He said that more could be achieved in
landscape water management in the next 3 months than had been
accomplished in the last 15 years.

Mr. Tom Robinson, 6401 Linda Vista Road, San Diego, CA
92111, representing the San Diego School District, addressed the -
Board. Mr. Robinson was concerned about getting new meters for

new schools. He suggested using applicable language regarding

11




new meters for new schools. He also asked the Board to consider

item B "when a project is necessary to protect the public's "

health, safety and welfare." Mr. Robinson said that the
construction of new school to accommodate existing students would
fall into that category.

Mr. Ed Duling, 9655 Lakeview Road, Lakeside, CA 92040
representing the Southern California Turf Grass Council,
addressed the Board. Mr. Duling stated that research and
education was their goal. The Cuyamaca Botanical Society reduced
ﬁheir field trips and added two and one half hours to water
research information to their members. He stressed that the
Regional Board should recognize the live stream concept of
éllowing reclaimed water in the streams. He was authorized to

work with students and adults in retrofitting irrigation systems.

Mr. Thom Maxwell-Miller, 1329 Lake Drive, Encinitas, CaA
92024 representing the American Landscape Contractors
Association, addressed‘the Board. He addressed section C of the
ordinance regarding irrigation of turf and ground covers. He
said that hospitals and convalescent homes should be included
with the parks. The e#emptions should be temporary and they
should be asked to develop a water management program within a
time preset by the districts. Mr. Miller felt that those areas
had a high public profile and it would be important for them to
set a good example in using their water efficiently. He also

stated that if the Board mandated solutions without alternative

12




compliance that there would be insurance claims. He said
versions I and II could be lived with.

Ms..Betty Addink, 2252 Main Street, Chula Vista, CA 91911,
addressed the Board. Ms. Addink stated that her sod farm would
not survive if the Board adopted version I. Lawns would not live
with watering only once every two weeks. She distributed a lawn
watering guide. More water should be cut inside the home and let
people decide how to use their share of water. Ms. Addink said
that adopting either version I or II would be a big mistake.

Director Mason asked Ms. Addink if she would support a
program that only allowed 10% of the land area for turf. Ms.
Addink séid she realized that less turf was needed, but she
couldn't agree to 10%. She said that practicing good measures in
irrigation would allow lawns to be saved.

Mr. Herb Hadley, 7502 S. Main Street, Crystal Lake, IL
60014, addressed the Board. Mr. Hadley stated that he was not a
resident of California. He said that the effects of the Board's
decision regarding mandatory water prohibitions would be felt
across the country. He represented Warren's Turf Nursery and
they sold $700,000 worth of sod in San Diego County last year.
Mr. Hadley said that many jobs would be lost if improper actions
were taken by the Board. The landscape people were the
environmentalists.

Mr; Bill Butler, 330 S. Cedros, Solana Beach, CA 92075,
addressed the Board. Mr. Butler said that hose watering did not

address the problems of condominium projects. The Board should

13




A0

not care about whether people would accept less turf. He felt

that the freedom of choice should be given in the application of

water.

Chairman Madigan stated that‘the Board did not enjoy the
position it was in. He wanted the public to think about the
kinds of consequences of not having any guidelines. The Board
was interested in fairness and equity, but the fact remained that
San Diego County was only going to get half of the water that it
had redquested.

Ms. Kay Stewart, 4460 Arch Street, San Diego, CA 92116
representing the San Diego Xeriscape Council, addressed the
Board. Ms. Stewart thanked the Authority staff for developing
alternatives II and IITI. She also thanked the Green Industry for

their support. She said that people were uninformed about how to .

preserve a green landscape in a dry climate. She felt the
Xeriscape approach produced landscaping with trees, and practical
turf areas with well managed irrigétion systems which save over
50% of landscape water. She said that the Xeriscape Council was
staffed by volunteers and funded by the Water Authority and other
sources. About 300 people per yeaf learn about Xeriscape through
their conference. Saving water takes money and it was cheaper to
waste water. No funding sources were developed. Ms. Stewart
said there were no tax‘breaks or water cost breaks to encourage
people to conserve water in the landscape. She said there was no
public policy to encourage landscape retrofit. Ms; Stewart said

that the offset program would help with that and she felt that if

14




there were already such programs, the result would be a lush
gfeen San Diego living within its water budget.

Director Taylor asked is Xeriscape plants took an excessive
amount of water to get established. Ms. Stewart said that they
didn't take more water than any other young plant.

Director Mason asked if the Xeriscape Task Force had a rule
of thumb on a ratio of turf to other plant materials. Ms.
Stewart said that the idea of turf should be practical. She said
that alternatives are suggested in place of turf.

Director Friedland asked if it was feasible to try to do
Xeriscaping during the drought or keep the same plants . Ms.
Stewart said that replanting areas should come when water is more
available. She suggested more efficient watering techniques and
mulching.

Mr. Donald Briggs, 1111 Poinsettia Avenue, Vista, CA 92083,
addressed the Board. Mr. Briggs stated he had been in San Diego
County since 1929 raising nursery stock. He said that if the
Board adopted either version I or II that it would be a grave
injustice to many people and the lawsuits would be many. He said
that his gross business grew about 20-23% cumulatively for the
last 14 years. He advised the Board to hold a workshop before
making any decision. He recommended that the hotels put bottles
of water in the rooms, turn off the toilets and tell the patrons

that the toilets would be flushed in the morning when the beds

were made up. He felt that the public should be educated instead

of using methods that put people out of business.

15




Chairman Madigan asked Mr. Snow to respond to Mr. Briggs
comments regarding a workshop and working with the professionals
in developing the ordinance.

Mr. Snow said that the ordinance was not developed in a
vacuum or overnight. The Emergency Model Ordinance was developed
3 years ago and the mandatory prohibitions were included. He
said meetings were held with the Green Industry Council, Golf
Course Industry and Landscape Architects working in the abstract.
He stated that as the drought continued, communities such as East
Bay in the Oakland areé, San Francisco, Santa Barbara and Marin
who have had to deal with a drought of this magnitude, were
contacted to get their input. As the drought got closer, more
meetings were held with technical people.

Mr. Briggs said that the working people would be able to
give more input and suggested holding a workshop before voting on
version I or II.

Mr. Chuck Fatum, 15342 Avenida Rorras, San Diego, CA 92128,
addressed the Board. Mr. Fatum stated that the golf courses in
San Diego County were more water efficient than anywhere else.

He felt that the golf courses should be allowed to use more water
than the 15% that would be used by watering the tees and greens.

Mr. Jim Davis, 3199 Winnetka, Bonita, CA 92002 representing
the Golf Course Water Conservation Group, addressed the Board.
Mr. Davis stated that they provided staff with material,

resulting in their support of version II.

16




Chairman Madigan asked if there was any way the golf course
industry could use the water allocated in version II more
efficiently and if so, could the Board be assured that the water
was being used that way. Mr. Davis said that golf courses could
be allowed a percentage cutback and target water. Chairman
Madigan asked if target watering meant that locations were being
watered on a fairway. Mr. Davis said yes.

Director Pryde asked what types of grasses were used on the
fairways and if they would live with only getting water every two
weeks. Mr. Davis said that bermuda would be the most likely to
survive.

Director Pryde asked what percentage of the golf courses in
the county had bermuda grass in the fairways. A member of the
public replied about 60-70%.

Director Parrish asked if Mr. Davis was concerned that the
number of golfers would decline and the revenues would be reduced
or if he was interested in the employees who serviced the
landscape. Mr. Davis said that agrinomics and economics were
both involved.

Director Parrish asked what had occurred in other areas of
the state where golf courses had faced serious water situations
for over a year. Mr. Davis said that while he worked with the
city of Santa Barbara, the Santa Barbara Community golf course
had their watering reduced to tees and greens. He said that all

the turf was dead except for the tees and greens after only a few

17




weeks. After three months the city turned their water back on

because of the loss in the tourist trade.

Director Wright asked what percentage of the people in San
Diego were golfers. A member of the public said that 70 golf
courses in the county had 200 rounds per day, 340 days per year
which equalled 4.7 million rounds of golf each year. Mr. Davis
stated that a booklet was published regarding the numbers, but he
didn't have one with him.

Mr. William Schwartz, 401 B Street, San Diego, CA 92101, an
attorney representing the Steel Canyon Golf Course, addressed the
Board. Mr. Schwartz stated that a letter had been sent to the

Authority and its General Counsel asking for a 50% water

allotment, like all the other commercial establishments in the

county. He said that they also wanted to be able to use the

allotment as they saw fit. Mr. Schwartz stated that golf courses
were prominent targets with high visibility but they were
businesses and should be treated as such. He felt that the loss
of the capital investment in golf courses was a big factor. He
said that version II would be better than version I.

Director Brannon asked if disaster funding would be .
available after the drdught. Mr. Snow said that low interest
drought relief funds were provided to people in the mid-west
several years ago.

Ms. Mary Winter, 1106 2nd Street, Encinitas, ca 92024,
addressed the Board. Ms. Winter stated that she represented a

company that imports absorbent polymers. The polymers hold

18




between 150 and 400 times their weight in water and the process
was 10 to 15 years old. Machinery was available to retrofit golf
courses. The starch based polymers saved between 25 and 50%
water usage. She asked that the golf courses be given an
allotment of water to manage themselves.

Director Omsted asked if the polymer was a one time
application. Ms. Winter said yes and research showed it had a 4-
5 year conservative longevity but in some soils it lasted 10
years.

Director Omsted asked how much it cost per acre and Ms.
Winter said $750 per acre.

Mr. Mike Horwath, 1670 E. Valley Parkway, Escondido, CA
92027, representing the San Diego County Farm Bureau, addressed
the Board. Mr. Horwath stated that agriculture was the fourth
largest industry in San Diego County. They were 85% efficient in
their water use in the county. Mr. Horwath said that the Farm
Bureau exported irrigation knowledge throughout the world
including the Soviet Union. He offered help to the Authority and
said the Farm Bureau would continue too be supportive.

Mr. Avi Crane, 1251 E. Dyer Road, Suite 200, Santa Ana, CA
92705 representing the California Avocado Commission, addressed
the Board. Mr. Crane stated that San Diego County accounted for
43% of all bearing avocado acreage in California. The 1989-90
season amounted to 100 million dollars. The water costs made up
the mosﬁ expensive portion in the production of avocados. The

average price per acre foot paid by avocado growers in San Diego

19




«

16

Ccounty last year was $350. He said that all avocado groves in
San Diego County use drip, trickle or micro-jet irrigation
systems to maximize water efficiency and production. He felt
that the Authority should do everything in its power to insure
adequate water to produce avocados in the county. Users who were
prudent in their water use in past years should not now be asked
to make more water available for non agricultural uses.

Mr. James Moore, 2429 Marilouise Way, San Diego, CA 92103,
addressed the Board. Mr. Moore stated that he was a 50 year
resident of San Diego. He wanted to know the resources for the
reclaimed water exclusions in the ordinance and if there was an
economic opportunity for firms to distribute reclaimed water to
those agricultural users.

Director of Water Reclamation MacLaggan said that there were
efforts underway to make several million gallons immediately
available for drought relief. He said that 12 million gallons of
supply was in the northern service area. The producers of that
supply were working to get the water out to users. 1In the long
term, the Authority was working on a program to make 100,000 acre
feet of reclaimed water available in the latter part of this
decade, |

Mr. Moore wanted ﬁo know if the Point Loma facility could
produce water to be transported by truck until a distribution
system could be developed. Chairman Madigan stated that City of
San Diego's secondary sewage ﬁreatment program was presently

reclamation driven. He said it was the intention of the

20




Authority by persuasion, by policy and by money to encourage the
city of San Diego to go ahead with the reclamation part of that
secondary treatment program as soon as possible.

Mr. Randy Fillat, 11839 Sorrento Valley Road, Suite E, San
bDiego, CA 92121, representing Aguasanta, addressed the Board.
Mr. Fillat made a presentation regarding polymers. He said the
substance was mined and when mixed with soil would produce great
water savings. There were four mines in the western U.S. A one
pound can of synthetic material sold for $29.00 and his mined
substance cost $25.00 for 50 pounds. He said that the substance
had been in use in Europe for 50 years. He asked the Authority
to look into desalination, reclamation and soil polymers.

Director Brannon asked if there was an affordable water
purification system that could be mounted next to a home for
greywater. Mr. Fillat said yes. Director Brannon asked how much
time it would take to implement the programs he suggested to get
a 50% savings. Mr. Fillet said a mandate to the developers would
help get the programs started.

Director Golding asked how much the purification system cost
for a single family home. Mr. Fillat did not know.

Mr. Floyd Wirthlin, 2606 Hollister Street, San Diego, CA
92154, addressed the Beoard. Mr. Wirthlin stated that his sod
business was started during the last drought. He said that there

were 4 varieties of turf and about 80% of that turf was tall

fescue. He felt that any cool season grass would not be alive by

July. Bermuda may not survive with watering once every 14 days.

21




L]

A8

He felt that the hand held hose was a bad way to water. Most

back yards were 65% turf and most front yards averaged 25-35%

turf. ﬁe said there was no alternative to turf. His family
wanted the freedom of choice in a 50% cutback.

Director Larson asked what percentage of Mr. Wirthlin's sod
was produced in the warm season grass varieties and what
percentage in the cool season grass varieties. Mr. Wirthlin said
that the largest seller was the tall fescue and 80% was that type
of grass because it was green all Year round.

Director Larson asked how much turf was sold into active use
areas and how much in visual areas such as shopping centers,
parkways, etc. Mr. Wirthlin said that 75% of his business was
residential which included new homes and renovating.

Director Brannon asked why after 4 years of drought, was 80%

of Mr. Wirthlin's market still in cool season grass. She wanted
to know why the industry continued to push a grass that was
inappropriéte in San Diego's climate. Mr. Wirthlin said it
wasn't the industry, it was the citizens. They preferred green
all year round. He said that bermuda was more difficult to keep
looking nice and it was brown during the winter.

Director Brannon asked if Mr. Wirthlin's clients would be
educated and influenced to change for the future. Mr. Wirthlin
said that the landscapers always emphasized water saving, but the
homeowner insisted on a lush green lawn. He felt the homeowner

was the problem.

22




Mr. Fillet said that the public outcry was for green grass

all year and they didn't want 2 months of brown grass.

Mr. Wirthlin said that his 7th grade daughter told him that
the drought was not discussed in any of her classes. Director
Larson asked Mr. Wirthlin to talk to his daughter's school board.
The County Water Authority and most of the member agencies do an
in-service presentation to schools. He said that plays, films,
workshops, anything that could be creatively done in a classroon
was available to every single elementary school in San Diego
County. He said that Mr. Wirthlin's daughter's school board must
have chosen not to participate in the programs.

Director Golding said that parents also had an obligation to
educate their children. -

Mr. Charlie Conatser, 412 W. Chase Avenue, El Cajon, CA
92020 representing the San Diego Coin Laundry Association,
addressed the Board. Mr. Conatser distributed a handout which
indicated that coin laundries use 35% less water than the
homeowner's machine. He asked that the coin laundries be exempt
from the 50% cutback. He suggested that laundries be put on the
list of exemptions because of their sanitary service to the
public..

Director Friedland stated that his Board at Rancho Santa Fe
were giving laundries and car washes exemptions from the

restrictions but they were being instructed to operate as

23




efficiently as possible. He said that reclaimed water would be

used where possible.

Mr. Conatser said that his coin laundry was only 6 months
old and his insurance company told him that they would not insure
him unless his water was purified. The cost for that would have
been $300,000 and the washers were not capable of using potable
water some of the time and reclaimed water at other times.

| Mr. Dave Clark, 4504 Cather Avenue, San Diego, CA 92122,
addressed the Board. Mr. Clark stated that he was a coin laundry
owner and consultant. He appealed to the Board not to penalize
or restrict water consumption by coin laundries. He emphasized

the need for low income people who use coin laundries to be

‘allowed to continue using them. He said that his family turned

off their sprinklers, hand wash their dishes, don't wash their

automobiles and use paper plates as often as possible. They do
their laundry in the coin laundry to save water.

Mr. Ed Aakhus, 8738-12 Villa La Jolla Drive, La Jolla, CA
92037, addressed the Board. Mr. Aakhus stated that he owned a
coin laundry in Barrio Logan. He said that the laundries were
efficient water users. He stated that the laundries provided
health and sanitation to the public. He asked that the coin
laundries be exempted to the water reductions.

Chairman Madigan asked Mr. Aakhus if he would give the
Authority some guidance in deciding who should receive more wafer

and who should receive less. Mr. Aakhus stated that the watering

24




of golf courses would pale compared to the health and sanitation
of the public.

Mr. Tom Ewing, 4931 Birch Street, Newport Beach, CA 92660,
éddressed the Board. Mr. Ewing questioned the prohibition of new
water meters. He said it would have a severe economic impact on
San Diego County's economy and the construction industry. He did
not feel that the Board completely addressed or studied the
repercussions of the prohibition. Mr. Ewing's company was about
to let a $5,000,000 construction contract in the City of
Oceanside. He stated that it was not fair or equitable to
arbitrarily prohibit the issuance of construction meters or the
guarantee of new water meters for projects to be constructed. He
said that his project would be water efficient.

Director Omsted asked Mr. Ewing if he felt that he could not
demonstrate a no net increase in water use as referenced in
subsection D of the item on new connections. Mr. Ewing said that
he had no idea if that could be done. Director Omsted suggested
that Mr. Ewing speak to Mr. Panarisi of the Construction Industry
Federation.

" Mr. Ole Ellingson, 7959 Silverton Avenue, #1011, San Diego,
CA 92126, addressed the Board. Mr. Ellingson represented the
swimming pool renovation industry. He questioned section 2C - 7
regarding filling swimming pools and spas. He felt that the
language should be changed to read "draining of swimming pools
and spas is prohibited except when renovation is appropriate or

needed to conserve water or for health reasons.

25

ot s




Dy

-~
i

-
ot

Mr. Buck said that if the renovation could demonstrate that

it would save the amount of water in the pool over a reasonable

period of time, it would be a conservation offset and the pool
would be allowed to be drained and filled.

Mr. Bob Cunningham, 8284 Miramar Road, San Diego, CA 92131
representing Mission Valley Pools and Spas, addressed the Board.
Mr. Cunningham offered his assistance in saving water in the pool
industry. He said that they want to be involved and are very
innovative.

Chairman Madigan asked Mr. Cunningham what he would
recommend in terms of amendment to ordinances I or II in that
regard. Mr. Cunningham suggested letting the pool industry use
well water for renovation. He also felt that the pool industry

could show a water offset in every household that they so0ld a

pool to. He said that the general public expected the pool
industry to fail because of the restrictions. Mr. Cunningham
stated that an Authority Director was going to put in a peool, but
not this year. He couldn't understand why the Director would put
off building the pool when he could save water in other areas and
help save the pool industry.

"Mr, Jim Hessler, 552 Beverly Place, San Marcos, CA 92069,
addressed the Board. Mr. Hessler was President of the Green
Industry Council and he thanked the Board and staff for their
concern and time they spent in trying to understand his industry.
He felt that the prohibitions on turf watering and the severe

restrictions on ground cover watering would put over 13,000 jobs

26




at risk in the green industry in San Diego County. Version II
would allow for some turf irrigation but he wanted it to be once
a week. He said that some of the member agencies suggested that
a one in 10 day watering cycle would be the easiest to enforce.
He suggested that if the Board approved version II that watering
should be allowed by the irrigation system as well as with a
hose, provided there was no runoff. He said there should be no
restriction on watering turf or ground cover that was irrigated
using a micro-irrigation system. Most agencies throughout the
state lobbied at the Department of Water Resource's hearings in
January for the right to prioritize their own water use. He felt
the same right should be passed on to the consumer of water. A
household water management plan developed by the Green Industry
Council was distributed. The water agency should come up with a
number they can use to prioritize their usage on a daily, weekly
or monthly basis. Mr. Hessler said that water budgeting would be
a better method to determine how much turf would be allowed
rather than a percentage.

Mr. William Tall, 4832 Home Avenue, San Diego, CA 92105,
addressed the Board. Mr. Tall said that retail gardeners and
landscapers were not fully aware of the water situation. The
nursery industry had been educating the public that they could
cut back 75-80% of their watering and still save their
landscapes. He said that he was standing out in front of the
Authority with his sign to let drivers passing by know about the

water situation.

27




Mr. Conrad Hammand, 3614 Milford Place, Carlsbad, CA 92008,

addressed the Board. Mr. Hammand said that a lot of resources

were untapped and any policy the Board adopted should be fair or
the public would not support it. People losing their jobs was
not fair. His family had already saved over 50%. He felt that
water should be limited to a per capita amount. Affordable
housing was a big issue and limiting building permits would drive
the prices up.

Chairman Madigan asked Mr. Hammand if he was not in favor of
the notion advanced by the Construction Industry Federation for
the conservation offset mechanism. Mr. Hammand said that he was
in favor of the offset but he was not in favor of a 100%
reduction in turf watering. He also felt that each person should

be allowed to use their own creativity to reach the goals set.

Chairman Madigan asked Mr. Hammand if he felt that every
individual should meet the 50% cutback in each business. Mr.
Hammand said yes. Chairman Madigan asked him if he would include
the gentlemen from the coin operated laundries. Mr. Hammand said
he didn't Know how to solve that problem. Chairman Madigan asked
if Mr. Hammand thought that the water intense industries such as
Pepsi and Coke should cut back 50%. Mr. Hammond said that they
should cut back some but his interest was mainly in the
residential area. He said that residents could cut back 60-70%.
Chairman Madigan asked Mr. Hammand where residents could cut back
60-70% and Mr. Hammand said that each individual should be

allowed to meet that need as they saw fit. He didn't think that

28




the Authority should dictate how the people should meet their
goals. Mr. Hammand said that people in his neighborhood were
using as much water as they could so that when the 50% cutback
was instituted, they would get more water. Chairman Madigan
stated that 1989 was the year being used for measuring their
water use.

Ms. Marcia Smerican, 528 Marine View Avenue, Del Mar, CA
92014, addressed the Board. Ms. Smerican said that it was
evident that most of the speakers had not lived through a
drought. Her family moved to the San Francisco Bay area 15 years
ago and were aware that there was a 4 year drought but they
planted sod anyway and then watched it die. They could only
flush once a day, take freezing Navy showers, wash sheets every
few weeks and saved pails of water everywhere. No one wanted to
visit them and they didn't want company. Their priorities were
not playing golf. Signs were placed everywhere in the Bay area
with slogans saying "shower with a friend" or "help us out, we
are in a drought." Ms. Smerican moved to San Diego County 3
years ago and she was very concerned that the extreme conditions
would come again. She encouraged the Authority to impose the
mandatory regulations to prevent such drastic shortages in the
next several months. People needed leadership in setting
consistent guidelines throughout San Diego County. No one
protested the regulations in San Francisco during the drought.
She said that people were willing then and today to sacrifice for

their basic needs. Water should never be taken for granted.

29




e
s

Director Collins said that it was nice to hear from members
of the public and she asked Ms. Smerican if there were others who
felt the same way. Mr. Smerican said that many people were
willing to cooperate and support the mandatory regulations. She
said that only a certain amount of water was available.

Mr. Dan Olson, 913 E. Rancheroé Drive, San Marcos, CA 92069,
addressed the Board. Mr. Olson stated that he was in the nursery
landscape business. He said that he would be going to a high
school in Escondido to talk to students about the nursery
business. He appealed to the Board to allow the freedom of
individual choice when watering. He suggested that human
ingenuity would take over to save lawns.

Chairman Madigan asked if Mr. Olson could differentiate
between a family who cut back significantly on their water usage,
say a family using less than 200 gallons a day, and a person who
made the top 100 list in San Diego. He asked if both should cut
back 50%. Mr. Olson said no, but they should go through an
appeals situation.

Mr. Madigan asked Mr. Olson if he thought that the appeals
process was designed for people who did not cut 50% or for people
offering to do more than 50%. Mr. Olson said he had a home in
Escondido with 50 citrué and avocado trees. He would cut down
trees to save his back lawn. He said that he received a bill
from the Vista Irrigation District suggesting that his water bill
would be going up 73%. There should be a rebate for cutting down

on usage.

30




Director Mason asked Mr. Olson is he got chance to talk to
his neighbor who was washing his car without a nozzle on the
hose. Mr. Olson said no. Chairman Madigan asked Mr. Olson if he
thought the neighbor had the right to wash his car in that manner
and Mr. Olson said no.

Chairman Madigan stated that the hearings for the Helix No.
3 and Otay #5 flow control facilities would be postponed until
the April 11 Board meeting.

Mr. Dave Fleming, 5805 Kearny Villa Road, San Diego, CA
92123, addressed the Board. Mr. Fleming said that adopting
version I would require many layoffs in the golf industry. He
said that he worked for a golf course that lost a lot of area due
to floods and it took 3-5 years for the business to recover.
Version II would be better but only 26 golf courses out of 70 in
San Diego were dependent on potable water. He stressed the fact
that golf courses were water efficient and could take out 30% of
their turf that wasn't played on. Golf courses were using more
water efficient grasses.

Chairman Madigan asked Mr. Fleming the percentage of golf
courses that were planted in the new water efficient grasses.

Mr. Fleming said that about 70% of the golf courses had bermuda
varieties that were drought tolerant.

Ms. Patricia Kent, 401 B Street, #1150, San Diego, CA
92101, addressed the Board. Ms. Kent thanked the staff for their
time and effort in rewording the ordinance. She said that she

supported the uniformity that the ordinance was designed to

31




<28

achieve. She was concerned by the appeal procedure and

recommended that the language be changed to provide the

iﬁdividual consumer the right to come before the Authority
appeals board to plead their case. She supported version II.

Mr. Snow explained that the Authority wanted its member
agencies to adopt prohibited uses that were in substantial
conformance with the Ordinance. The agencies could present
variations of the prohibitions to the Authority for approval. He
said that individuals with hardships could go before their member
agencies to appeal. That member agency would then come before
the Authority for approval of the appeal.

Jessica Mazalewski, 8900 Highfield Street, La Mesa, CA
91941, addressed the Board. Ms. Mazalewski stated that she also

lived through the drought in northern California. She felt that

the list of mandates should be given to the public to let them
know what they had to work with. Her nursery would be
drastically impacted by the ordinance, but the public needed to
be notified. She asked whether her water meters could be pooled
so that all of them together would meet the 50% reduction instead
of measuring each meter separately.

Chairman Madigan assured Ms. Mazalewski that the staff would
look into the matter of pooling meters.

Director Mason said that Vallecitos Water District adopted

the concept of pooling meters.

32




Director Tinker said that Fallbrook Water District also
approved the concept but he didn't think it had been adopted
regionally.

Director Friedland stated that Rancho Santa Fe needed an
advanced billing system before they could adopt such a program.

Mr. Snow said that the ordinance did not address the issue
of pooling meters because it was an agency matter.

Ms. Mazalewski requested that all agencies be required to .
adopt the same rules regarding pooling meters.

Director Watton stated that Otay Water District would
consider multiple meters, but he felt that the ordinance should
not be that detailed. He said it was a matter for the agencies
to handle rather than having the Authority involved.

General Counsel Engstrand said that if an agency had a
problem with adopting the multiple meter pooling, then the meter
owner could appeal to the General Manager.

Director Taylor said that there was nothing in any of the
versions of the ordinance that would prohibit an agency from
taking care of the issue.

Chairman. Madigan explained that if Ms. Mazalewski had meters
from several agencies and not all of them adopted the meter
pooling concept, then she would have a problem. He referred the
matter to staff for review and recommendation.

Mr. Monty Griffen, 2034 Upas Street, San Diego, CA 92104,
addressed the Board. Mr. Griffen‘gave staff several newspaper

articles regarding water issues in California. He recommended

33




<30

that the Board support market based water pricing throughout the

state, suppért Mr. Isenberg's ideas on water distribution in

California and support the water bills by Congressman George
Miller and Senator Bill Bradley of New Jersey.

Mr. Douglas Lovejoy, 8085 Alton Drive, Lemon Grove, Ca
91945, addressed the Board. Mr. Lovejoy said that the landscape
industry would be willing to live with a 50% cutback in water
supply. He felt that each homeowner should be able to decide how
to use their water.

Chairman Madigan stated that the military in the City of San
Diego used approximately 6% of the total water use. The
hospitals and public health facilities use a large amount of
ﬁater and they were unable to cut back 50%. He said that there

were many people in the City who were conserving for quite some

time. He cited Mr. Griffen's statement that he and his family
used only 15 gallons per day per person. He said that Mr.
Griffen would have a difficult time in cutting back 50%. He
asked Mr. Lovejoy if he thought that asking everyone to simply
cut back 50% would achieve the goal.

Mr. Lovejoy said no, but he personally supported giving each
person a certain number of gallons; He said that the residential
users were being expecﬁed to cut back 60-70% to make up for the
other users who may not be able to cut back 50%.

Chairman Madigan said that the County of San Diego would be
getting half of the water it normally received and many groups

had stated they were not going to be able to achieve the 50%

34




cutback. The Board was looking for ways to conserve water
without economically impacting the whole County. He said that
many hours were spent talking with organizations to develop the
ordinance.

Mr. Lovejoy said that the public would not accept
recommendations from the landscapers to use bermuda grass because
they were not aware of the water situation. He said the public
should be better informed.

Chairman Madigan said that the ordinance would tell people
just what they were required to do.

Mr. Lovejoy said that he wanted to be told what to do, but
be given the freedom to use his 50% in the way he chose.

Director Brannon stated that the public had been in denial
for over 4 years and was still in denial. She said that the
water had to be saved very quickly and there was not time for
replanting or changing the drip. That could be done later, but
the problem was immediate and the public didn't want to hear it.

Mr. Lovejoy responded that retrofitting could be done.
Director Brannon said that she had asked for time commitments
from other speakers. The cutbacks needed by April 15th could not
be accomplished by retrofitting. She said that the landscape
industry was not being asked to stop from moving forward in
helping people convert to drip, educating people, changing their
focus to drought management and eventually to new landscaping

practices.

35




Mr. John Badeaux, 2438 Ashford Glen, Escondido, CA 92027,

addressed the Board. Mr. Badeaux was the conservation

coordinator for McMillan Communities. He presented a water
allocation proposal that stated:_the residential user would be
given his allotment the first month. After the first month a
letter would be sent to the owner explaining the higher rate for
excessive use plus a stiff penalty of 100% on the over usage.
After the second month of excessive use the owner would be
charged a 200% increase and a flow restrictor would be installed
to recoup the losseé from the previous months. Mr. Badeaux felt
that the owners would have a couple of months to learn how to
manage their water and save their landscape. He also had a plan
for the commercial owners which included locking off their meters

after the first month of excessive use.

Chairman Madigan said that the Authority had to cut back 50%
from April through December. If the 50% goal was not reached
immediately, he asked Mr. Badeaux if it was worth risking two
months of voluntary and then having to go to 60% or 70%
reductions in July. Mr. Badeaux said that the professionals
would have their meters locked off after one month of excessive
use and all the water they would have used would be available.

Ms. Karen Zobell, 3003 Fourth Avenue, San Diego, CA 92103,
addressed the Board. Ms. Zobell said that her law firm
represented many property owners in San Diego County. She
commended the Board of3Directérs and the Authority's staff for

their efforts on the ordinance and stated that her firm supported

36



the Construction Industry Federation's attempts to work with the
Authority in the conservation offset program.

Mr. Art Lujan, 3909 Centre Street, #212, San Diego, CA
92103, addressed the Board. Mr. Lujan was the business manager
for the Building and Construction Trades Council in San Diego.
He said that the construction industry worked 20-25% fewer man
hours than last year. He said they were also supportive of the
CIF's efforts to work with the Authority and would urge the
conservation of water.

Mr. Larry Wilken, 110 West "A" Street, San Diego, CA 92101,
addressed the Board. Mr. Wilken represented the law firm of
Luce, Forward, Hamilton and Scripps. He was concerned about the
language of "conservation offsets" and "no net increase™ in the
ordinance. He wanted clarification of the meaning of those
provisions.

Mr. Snow explained how the conservation offset program
worked. A property owner would contact their local water agency
to build a home and the water agency would calculate the demand
for that unit. For example, if the demand equalled 200 gallons
per day for the new home, then a conservation offset in existing
housing would be found amounting to 200 gallons per day.

Director Mason asked if customers who had already purchased
their meters but had not installed them, would have to pay into
the conservation offset program.

Mr. Snow said that was a pipeline issue and referred it to

Mr. Engstrand. Mr. Engstrand said that the ordinance and handout

37

_ =33




.. R34

for revision to section 13 dealt with new connections. To get a

new connection, an individual would have to have their building

permit before April 15.
Director Brannon questioned whether the building permit
level was the best place to hold up the water meter issuance.
Mr. Engstrand said that the line could be drawn at the

tentative map, parcel map, final map, will-serve letters or the

~certificate of availability. The ordinance drew the line at the

building permit after April 15. Those people who had their
building permits before April 15 would be allowed to get a water
meter.

Ms. Diane Harrison addressed the Board. She represented a
chemical company that developed a hybrid in the polyacrylamide

family that could be broadcast, aerated with a whirlybird, put

into solution and used through drip irrigation for lawns and
plants. She said that she recommended allocating water and
recommended that people look at the new product for water
conservation. She said the product would not be absorbed by the
plant, did not build up salt and could be used on vegetables and
fruits with a 50% water conservation.

Mr. Gary Kah said that the 10 year water budget used in
Arizona represented a viable version IV of the ordinance.

Chairman Madigan adjourned the public hearing at 5:35 p.m.

Chairman Madigan reconvened the meetiné at 5:50 p.m. to hear

Board comments on the three versions of proposed Ordinance 91-1.

38




<35

Director Omsted asked for clarification of language
_beginning on page 4 and on to page 5 in section b. She asked if
staff had given any consideration to conservation offsets being
allowed by any industry which chose to do so, should a member
agency find it acceptable.

General Manager Snow answered that member agencies providing
conservation offsets in terms of individual allocations that are
in pricing structure is a good idea. He said that it is
something that should be dealt with by each agency.

Director Watton said that the SDCWA needed to indicate a
firm direction to the public. He moved that version 1 of the
proposed ordinance 91-1 be adopted with the change that Mr.
Engstrand's letter made on Section 13. Mr. Anderson seconded the
motion.

Comments and discussion féllowed. Director Leach asked that
the matter be viewed in the context that there was a water
management problem and a question of regional vs. local control.
He was in support of version #1.

Director Eggert said that the Helix Board met the previous
day and approved support of version #1, but would like to have
some discretion in how to handle its water. He said that Helix
wished to be recorded as protesting the penalty for failing to
adopt the ordinance as set forth in section 3-b.

Director Mason spoke about version #2. He said that if
version #2 was considered for a month and if conservation was not

successful and the water picture did not improve, then there

39




would be reason to tighten up. He said that while the governor's

program on water banking had only reached about 10% of its goal,

the reports that were coming in were optimistic that goals would
be achieved and the SDCWA needed to let the goverﬁor's plan work.
He said that a lot of jobs were on the line which was very
important to the economy and he hated to see the region move from
recéssion to depression because of actions taken by the Board.

Director Mason moved, as a substitute motion, to adopt
version #2 and the motion was seconded by Director Golding with
some amendments.

Director Golding said that she agreed in principle with Mr.
Mason. She said that the Authority had the public's attention
but there was a tremendous amount of education that needed to be
doné without much time to do it. She asked that version #2 be '
approved and since prohibitions would not go into affect until
April 15, any égency that did not reach the 50% cutback in 30
days by using their own methods, would then have to adopt the
other prohibitions that weren't adopted.

Comments and discussion followed.

Director Krauel asked if it would be legal to impose
different standards on different agencies.

Mr. Snow answered that as long as everyone who did not
comply was treated uniformly then there was not a legal problem.

He said that if agencies were split then the uniformity issue
that we had strived to get in terms of media message and uniform

communication would be lost.

40



Director Krauel had suggestions to be added to either
version #1 or version #2. She asked if the makers of the.motions
would include in the motions, language to clarify conservation
offset and that something be added to require member agencies to
institute an appeals process for customers. Director Watton
agreed.

Chairman Madigan announced that it was his intention to
adjourn the regular meeting of the Board in such a fashion that
it could be called together quickly. He intended to adjourn it
to next Thursday with the notion that a meeting may not be held
next Thursday but maybe two or three Thursdays from now to give
maximum flexibility té respond to any circumstances, whether
spectacular compliance, or unbelievable rainfall or great success
in the water bank, etc.

Director Parrish suggested that maybe some amendments could
be made to version #1 to accomplish what Director Golding was
asking. He asked for parliamentary guidance.

Mr. Engstrand said that the Board followed parliamentary
procedures established by the Chair and if members of the Board
did not approve of the rulings of the chair, they could challenge
the chair and overrule. He said the intent and purpose of such a
parliamentary ruling was to be sure that the majority of the
Board made the decision that was to be made that day.

Director Anderson said that he was concerned that if version
#2 was adopted and then changed to version #1 for some districts

in the future, the public would be given mixed messages.

41




Director Frahm supported version #2 with the modifications

expressed by Director Golding. She said that regarding the -

notion of substantial compliance, she would like the draft to be
modified to not necessarily require the hand-held hose watering
of turf but to permit substantial compliance to be realized
through the application of best management practices. Further,
she joined in with Director Krauel's request for the appeals
procéss and in addition to having an appeals process. If the
Authority was going to be mandating prohibitions, the appeals
process should provide for possible release from the 50% limit if
it could be shown to the satisfaction of the member agency or in
lieu of that relief from a specific prohibition. Also, she
suggested moving up the date for the 50% reduction that was set

forth in paragraph #6-b as April 30, to April 15 and the actual

delivery reduction go into place June 1 rather than May 1. She
proposed those suggestions as amendments to Director Mason's
motion. |

Director Mason accepted Directors Frahm and Golding's
amendments by consensus.

Director Omsted asked Director Watton to consider amending
his motion to make the ordinance effective April 1. Director
Watton supported the April 1 date.

Director Brannon said that she supported Version #1, but
asked for an adjustment in the language under irrigation of turf,
on page 5. She said that she would like to see b in section 2,

moved up to also be under section 1, with a restriction to once

42




every 14 days, strictly as an environmental protection of trees
and shrubs in large areas that couldn't be done by hand in public
areas.

Mr. Snow asked for clarification. He asked if the concept
was that turfed area that had trees interspersed be irrigated?
Director Brannon answered yes, under exactly the same as for
ground cover where it is restricted to once every 14 days. She
said that goal was to keep the trees alive in large park areas
that couldn't be done by hand.

Mr. Snow said that there were park areas where there was
turf, i.e., on a hillside, and that would not be an active play
area, but the point was there may be a lot of trees planted and
that Director Brannon had raised that we provide the same type of
water schedule that we do if it were ground cover on the
hillside.

Director Watton asked for some clarification on Director
Brannon's suggestions.

Chairman Madigan asked that Directors Brannon and Watton get
together to work out clarification and come back to the Board
with suggestions.

Mr. Snow suggested that language not be specifically
included at this time, and work on how to do it and have it
included in a variance type of process that had been suggested.
He said that criteria could be developed and then it could be

used in a specific case by case variance.

43




20

Director Watton asked for staff input on "if a person/agenéy

retrofit an area from turf to xeriscape or from some water

intensive landscaping to xeriscape, and could demonstrate an
immediate 50% savings, then would‘they be allowed to irrigate or
have that xeriscape. |

Mr. Snow said that there was a problem because a use would
be offset that would normally be prohibited. He said that the
problem with the direct application of the conservation offset to
turf was that the ordinance would ban it, so an offset wasn't
needed. The only place it would work, he said is after targeted
reduction is achieved, then offsets could be allowed as long as
within the target. He said that there may be some room for
offsets in landscape watering.

After lengthy discussion, Chairman Madigan asked Directors

Watton and Brannon if they had arrived at language to amend
version #1.

Director Watton said that regarding the conservation offset
for landscape, if the agency made its 50% cutback, an
individual/group could bring in a professional water management
plan to demonstrate no net increase. If that could be done then
they could proceed with xeriscaping.

Chairman Madigan asked Directors Mason, Golding, Watton and
Anderson if they would accept the amendment in their motions and
they all said yes.

Chairman Madigan said that both motions have now within them

by agreement by the makers and the seconders of the motions the

44




language for a local appeal process which we now have a draft of
and will read, language that the ordinance which will start on
April 1st, with flow restrictions on May 1st and language that
once an agency reached the 50% mandated cutback that there would
be a possibility for a local appeal program that would allow
conservation offsets for landscaping that would keep them within
that 50% but would allow landscaping previously under prohibited
uses to get some xeriscape landscaping.

Director Watton said that substituting Mr. Engstrand's
change for number 13; conservation offset language change
suggested by Director Krauel; irrigation of trees and turf around
the drip line; move the delivery restriction date to May 1st.

Chairman Madigan asked if there were any questions about
what was in the main motion and what was in the substitution
motion by agreement of the makers and seconders of those motions?

Mr. Snow said that the idea about the offset was a good one.
He said that they were concerned that there had not been enough
time to look at the administrative detail of the potential of
dealing with many plans that might come in and how they will be
reviewed, who does it, how it was implemented. He asked if
action could be taken on the basic program and instruct staff to
come back with a plan on how this concept might work. He said
that it would keep it from weighing down the ordinance itself
and still satisfy the wishes of the Board in terms of pursuing.

Directors Watton, Anderson, Mason and Golding agreed.

45




<1

Chairman Madigan said that the substitution motion was for

the General Manager's recommendation #2 which included the

appeals process amendment, the start on April 1st, the flow
restrictions on May 1lst, the Engstrand amendment, the Krauel
cleanup, trees and turf to the drip line and a return by the
General Manager on a best management practices flexibility plan
given the fact that the agency had first met the 50% cutback
established by the SDCWA. He asked if there were amendments to
the substitution motion, recognizing that the substitufion motion
was number 2 and the main motion was number 1. He called for the
question. The motion was not carried.

Chairman Madigan said that the main motion before the house
was to adopt the General Manager's alternative number 1,

including the following amendments: a local appeals process

amendment, a start of this program‘on April 1, a beginning of
flow restrictions for agencies who did not comply on May 1,
General Counsel's cleanup language on new service, the Krauel
clean up language, tree and turf watering to the drip line in
public parks, the instruction to the General Manager to return to
this organization with language that would implement the notion
of a best management practices flexibility program for those
individual water users in agencies that met the 50% cutbacks
imposed by the Metropolitan Water District and the\San Diego
County Water Authority. Chairman Madigan called for the
question. The motion to adopt Version #1 with amendments was

carried.

46




The Chairman called for a vote by role call.. The Board
unanimously voted to adopt version #1 of the proposed Ordinance
91-1 with amendments.

There being no further business to come before the Board,

Chairman Madigan adjourned the meeting ended at 8:00 p.m.

Qs £ Tt Zo

net R. Maltman
Executive Secretary

/’7’0/\LL~

M. D. Madigan, ChaArman

47







SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING
March 14, 1991

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Diego
County water Authority was held on Thursday, March 14, 1991 in the
Board Room of Authority Headquarters, 3211 Fifth Avenue, San Diego,
California.

Chairman Madigan called the meeting to order at 8:22 p.nm.
Vice Chairman Stickney led the salute to the flag. Secretary Leach
called the roll. Directors answering present were Anderson,
Brannon, Carlson, Chenelle, Collins, Cooper, Drake, Frahm,
Friedland, Golding, Hollingsworth, Johnson, Krauel, Larson, Leach,
Madigan, Mason, Omsted, Parker, Parrish, Pryde, Snavely, Stevens,
Stickney, Taylor, F. Thompson, K. Thompson, Tinker, Turner, Watton
and Wright. Absent were Directors Eggert, Griffen and Starkey.
Also present were Messrs. Snow, Engstrand, Bakall, Rhodes, Ms.
Jackson, Buck and others.

The Secretary declared a quorum present.

Director Hollingsworth moved, secon@ed by Director Golding and
carried, to approve the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held
on February 14, 1991 and the minutes of the Special Board meeting
held on March 7, 1991.

Director Golding moved, seconded by Director Wright and

carried, to continue items 6-B (Hearing re Negative Declaration for

the Construction of the Combined Otay 5/San Diedgo 13 Flow Control

Facility) and 6-C (Hearing re Negative Declaration for the

®

A




construction of the Helix 3 Flow Control Facility and Transmission

Pipeline) .

The public hearing re opportunity for the public to appear and
be heard re Adoption of Negative Declaration and Ordinance
Establishing Capacity Chérges for Fiscal Year 1991-92, was opened
at 8:25 p.m. Assistant General Manager Jackson explained that the
report entitled "Development of Capacity Charges, San Diego county
Water Authority" dated May, 1990, provided for an annual increase
in the capacity charge‘equivalent to the Authority's average cost
of money. That would allow the basic capacity charge to be
increased 7.5% to $860 for fiscal year 1991-92. She said that
Government Code provisions regquired that a negative declaration be
prepared for public review.

There were no members of the public who wished to address the
board regard;ng the capacity charges.

The public hearing was closed.

Ms. Jackson said staff recommended that the Board approve the
resolution finding that there was no substantial evidence that the
proposed capacity chafges would have a significant effect on the
environment.

Director Friedland moved, seconded by Director Anderson and
carried, to adopt said resolution entitled

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY

WATER AUTHORITY FINDING THAT THERE IS NO SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE

THAT THE PROPOSED CAPACITY CHARGES WILL HAVE A SIGNIFICANT

EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND APPROVING A NEGATIVE DECLARATION
FOR SUCH CHARGES.

3%




is numbered 91-16 and entered at page 175, Book 21 of Resolutions.

Chairman Madigan appointed Director Brannon to represent the
Water Authority on the City of San Diego's Governance Advisory
Group of their Clean Water Programf Director Chenelle was selected
as the alternative representative.

CONSENT CALENDAR
Chairman Madigan stated that Items 8-E (Memorandum to Board

via_lLong Range Planning Committee re Negative Declaration for the

Construction of the Combined Qtay 5/San Diego 13 Flow Control

Facility), and 8-F (Memorandum to Board via Iong Ranqe Planning

Committee re Negative Declaration for the Construction of the Helix

3 Flow Control Facility and Transmission Pipeline), were continued.

Director watton stated that Item 8-M (Memorandum to Board via

Water Policy Committee re Proposed Ordinance Declaring a Water

Shortage Emergency) had been dealt with during the special meeting

after the public hearing which commenced at 1:00 p.m. and had just
concluded.

Director Frahm requested that Item 8-I (Memorandum to Board

via Fiscal Policy Committee re Adoption of Negative Declaration and

Qrdinance for the Capacity Charde for Fiscal vear 1991-92) be

withdrawn from the Consent Calendar and deferred to the Apriil

meeting.

Director Parrish requested that Item 8-C (Memorandum to Board
via Administrative and Legal Committee re Proposal to Medicall
=== sttetlarlVe and Legal Committee edqically

Insure Directors) be withdrawn and deferred to the April meeting.

3




Director Turner moved, seconded by Director Hollingsworth and
carried, to approve the remaining Consent Calendar items:

Memorandum_to Board via Water Reclamation Comnittee re

U of Reclaimed Water During Drought Conditions

Temporary Uses of Reclaimed Water

recommended that the Board récommend the reclaimed water producers
prioritize reclaimed water user agreements in a manner that would
minimize the loss of jobs and economic damage associated with the
drought. Top priority should be given to essential public works
projects and the maintenance of the health, safety and welfare of
the region. If a particular use is not a high priority and the
reclaimed water is available, the producer should consider making
water available to thaf user on a temporary basis.

Memorandum to Board via Water Reclamation Committee re

Approval of Contract with State Water Resources Control Board for

staffing Assistance recommended that the Board authorize the

General Manager to enter into an agreement with the State Water

Resources Control Board and that such an agreement be in a form
approved by the General Counsel.
Memorandum to Board via Administrative and Legal Committee re

Water Authority Transportation Management Plan recommended that the

Board adopt the Transportation Management Program.

Memorandum to Board via Engineering and Operations Committee

re Consultant Selection for Pipe Plant Fabrication Inspection

Services for the Construction of Pipeline 5 Extension, Phase I
(P5EI) recommended that the Board authorize the General Manager to

execute a time and materials agreement with Walls Inspection

4




Service to provide pipe plant fabrication inspection services for
the construction of Pipeline 5 Extension, Phase I for a fee of
$30.00 per hour plus mileage up to a maximum limit of $300,000.

Memorandum to Roard via Fiscal Policy Committee re Resolution

for the Establishment of a Pay~-as-vou-go Capital Facilities Account

recommended the Board adopt said resolution entitled
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY
WATER AUTHORITY ESTABLISHING THE PAY-AS-YOU-GO CAPITAL
FACILITIES ACCOUNT

is numbered 91-15 and entered at page 173, Book 21 of Resolutions.
Memorandum _to Board via Fiscal Policy Committee re

Establishment of Public Hearing Date for the Water Availability

Standby cCharge recommended that the Board adopt such resolution

entitled

REGARDING THE PROPOSED WATER AVAILABILITY STANDBY CHARGE FOR
1991-92

is numbered 91-17 and entered at page 179, Book 21 of Resolutions.

Memorandum to Board via Fiscal Policy Committee re Resolution
Creating an Emergency Supply Augmentation Fund within the General

Unrestricted Funds recommended that the Board adopt such resolution

entitled

is numbered 91-18 and entered at page 183, Book 21 of Resolutions. -

Memorandum to Board via Water Policy Committee re Approval of

Submission to MWD for Conservation Credit Funding of Phase II of

5




o)

the CWA-SDGSE Showerhead Retrofit Program and Authorization of

Extension of the Contract with Roberts Company recommended that the

Board authorize the General Manager to (1) submit a residential
interior plumbing retrofit program proposal to Metropolitan Water
District, and (2) extend the existing contract with the Roberts
Ccompany, at a cost not-to-exceed $482,391.

Memorandum to Board via Water Policy Committee Tre
Authorization of General Manager to Transfer up to $350,000 from
the Conservation and Storage Fund and Use to Purchase Showerhead
Kits recommended that the Board authorize the General Manager to
transfer up to $350,000 from the conservation and storage fund and
use it for the purchase of water conserving showerhead kits.

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

General Manager Snow stated that he was proud to be working
for such a good Board and that the Board was the finest he'd seen
in dealing with difficult issues. He expressed his appreciation to

the staff for their long hours and dedication to the Authority.

'CHIEF ENGINEER'S REPORT

chief Engineer Bakall had nothing to add to his written
report.

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGERS' REPORTS

Assistant General Manager Jackson stated that  the
administrative report would be expanded to track the financial
effects of the drought and specifically the project status of the

public information program.

Iov




Assistant General Manager Rhodes had nothing to add to his

written report.

GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT General Counsel Engstrand had nothing to

add to his written report.
TREASURER'S REPORT

Chief Financial Officer Campbell had nothing to add to the
treasurer's report.

The Treasurer's Report showed a ledger balance of
$10,964,564.37, a petty cash balance of $1,000, bond proceeds of
$108,151,825.51, government securities of $37,092,512.92, and time

deposits of $43,661,721.24, making a total accountability of

$189,851,643.01. Certificates of deposit placed in January
included:

01/11/91 Union : 04/29/91  6.900% $1,000,000.00
01/11/91 San Diego Trust 04/29/91 6.800% 1,000,000.00
01/11/91 SANWA 04/29/91 6.750% 1,000,000.00
01/28/91 Union 02/27/91 6.650% 1,400,000.00
01/30/91 San Diego Trust 02/26/91 6.600% 1,000,000.00
01/30/91 San Diego Trust 02/26/91 6.600% 1,000,000.00
01/31/91 Bank of America 03/04/91 6.500% 1,250,000. 00
01/31/91 SANWA 03/27/91  6.700% 1,084,923,27
01/31/91 SANWA 03/27/91 6.700% 1,073,211.18
01/31/91 SANWA : 03/27/91 6.700% 1,039,023.75
01/31/91 SANWA 03/27/91 6.700% 1,084,792.91
01/31/91 SANWA 03/27/91 6.700% 1,084,923,27
01/31/91 SANWA 03/27/91 6.700% 1,039,023.73
01/31/91 SANWA 03/27/91 6.700% 905,604.37
01/31/91 San Diego Trust 03/27/91 6.650% 905,604,37
01/31/91 San Diego Trust 03/27/91 6.650% 1,038,599.12
01/31/91 San Diego Trust 03/27/91 6.650% 556,015.29

REPORTS BY COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN

Executive Committee. Chairman Madigan had nothing to add.

Adminjstrative and Legal Committee, Director Parrish reported

that the action item was considered on the Consent Calendar. He

2




also stated that Ms. Jackson had the RFP's from the executive
search firms for the General Counsel position and requested that
the Director's get them from her.

Engineering and Operations Committee. Director Friedland

reported that all action items were considered on the Consent

Calendar.

Long Randge Planning Committee. Director Anderson reported

that all action items were considered on the Consent Calendar.

Public Information Committee. Director Larson reported that
all items were information only.

Fiscal Policy Committee. Director Frahm reported that all
items except the capacity charge item, were considered on the
Consent Calendar.

Water Policy Committee. Director Watton said that the

committee requested staff to develop a guideline for per capita
usage to bring before the Board as soon as possible and he so
moved, seconded by Director Pryde and carried. Directors Krauel,
Stickney and Anderson voted no.

Water Reclamation Committee. Director Pryde reported that all

action items were considered on the Consent Calendar.

METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT

Director Stickney stated that there was much discussion on the
early'response problem. He said that approximately 6 months ago
the federal government enacted a law that if an agency was going to
respond to the spill of a dangerous chemical that it would have to

have three trained people on hand. He said that an agency didn't

8




have to respond but could dial 911. Staff at Metropolitan
submitted a request for 66 people and he voted for it.

Director Krauel held her report due to the hour.

Director Mason stated that a ;ate increase was passed by one
vote.

Director Cooper stated that Milon Mills of the City of San
Diego, mentioned that the City Council of San Diego refused his
request for a cost of service water rate increase and threatened
not to allow pass-through of the Metropolitan and.the Authority
increases.

COLORADO RIVER REPORT

Director Stickney stated that the Colorado River Aqueduct
would continue to be full.
ACWA-JPIA

There was no report.

There being no further business to come before the Board,
Chairman Madigan adjourned the meeting at 8:38 p.m. to Thursday,

March 21.

Ot £ Wit Foton—

net R.” Mdltman
xecutive Secretary

7 2?? ///\jL/Z__;

Mike Madigan, Chai¥man

o







